
POLK  COUNTY,  WISCONSIN 
  WWW.CO . PO L K .W I . U S  

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

                                                       Phone (715) 485‐9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson@co.polk.wi.us 

	
AGENDA	AND	NOTICE	OF	MEETING	
ENVIRONMENTAL	SERVICES	COMMITTEE	

Government Center, 100 Polk County Plaza, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 
County Board Room 

Wednesday, May 22, 2019 at 9:00 a.m. 
A quorum of the County Board may be present 

 
Materials – Agenda, Minutes to May 8, 2019 Meeting, Work Plan, Foresters 
Annual Report, Res No 24‐19 Donation of Land, Dog Claim, Ordinance No 05‐
15, Tourist Rooming House Proposed Ordinance Amendments. 
 
1. Call to Order – Chairperson Kim O’Connell 
2. Approval of Agenda 
3. Approval of minutes for May 8, 2019 
4. Public Comments – 3 minutes per person – not to exceed 30 minutes 

total 
5. Receipt of Information on Matters Noticed from Supervisors not 

Seated as Committee Members 
6. Extension 

a. Dog Claim 
7. Forest Administrator Report – Mark Gossman 

a. Res No. 24-19 Resolution to Accept Donation of Land from 
Robert Johnson 

b. Annual Report Forest 
c. Sterling tower update 

8. Parks, Recreation and Trails  
a. Update and discussion on all State and County Trails  

 Trail Maintenance – Forester   
b. Kennedy Dam bids 

                         
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
The Polk County Environmental Services Committee will hold 
consecutive public hearings on Wednesday, May 22nd, 2019 at 
10:00 a.m. in the Government Center, Balsam lake, Wisconsin, to 
consider the following district change, conditional use and other 
agenda items: 

 JAMIE JANSSEN requests a Conditional Use via Article 
8.E.5 of the Polk County Shoreland Protection Zoning 
Ordinance to have a small engine repair business and 
indoor boat storage.  Property affected is: 73 210th Ave, 
Lot 1, CSM#1230, part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Sec 



2 
 

13/T35N/R15W, Town of Johnstown, parcel #028-
00313-0000. 
 

8. Land Information 
 Tourist Rooming House amendment to Ordinance – 

discussion and action. 
 

9. Review and discussion of Functional Areas assigned to the Committee 
for the Purpose of scheduling Program Evaluation of Functional 
Assigned Areas. 
 

10. Committee Calendar and Identification of Subject Matters for 
Upcoming Meetings and fill out written Chair report for any 
resolutions moved forward 

11. Adjourn 
 

Items on the agenda not necessarily presented in the order listed. This 
meeting is open to the public according to Wisconsin State Statute 19.83. 
Persons with disabilities wishing to attend and/or participate are asked to 
notify the County Clerk’s office (715-485-9226) at least 24 hours in 
advance of the scheduled meeting time so all reasonable accommodations 
can be made. Requests are confidential. 
 

 
 



1 
 

PO L K  COU N T Y,  WIS C O N SI N 
W W W . C O . P O L K . W I . U S         

Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
100 Polk Plaza, Suite 110, Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

Phone (715) 485-9226  Email Sharon.Jorgenson @co.polk.wi.us 

MINUTES 
Environmental Services Committee 

Government Center County Board Room 
        100 Polk County Plaza Balsam Lake, WI 54810 

              9:00 A.M. Wednesday, May 8, 2019 

Member Attendance  

Attendee Name Title Status 
Kim O’Connell Chair Present 
Tracy LaBlanc Supervisor Present 
Doug Route Supervisor Present 
Brad Olson Vice Chair Present 
Jim Edgell Supervisor Present 
Lyle Doolittle FSA Representative Present 
  
Also present were Stephanie Fansler, Deputy County Clerk; Nick Osborne, County 
Administrator; Malia Malone, Corporation Counsel; Joseph Loso, Assistant Corporation Counsel; 
members of the public and of the press.                                                      

Meeting called to order by Chair O’Connell at 9:04 A.M. 

Approval of Agenda- Chair O’Connell called for a motion to approve the amended agenda. 
Motion (LaBlanc/Route) to approve the amended agenda carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Approval of Minutes – Chair O’Connell called for a motion to approve the minutes of the April 
24, 2019 meeting.  Motion (Olson/Edgell) to approve the minutes of the April 24, 2019 meeting 
as published carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Public Comment –Twelve public comments were received by the committee.  

Receipt of Information from non-committee Supervisors on Matters Noticed – none offered. 
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Nick Osborne, Administrator for the purpose of receiving 
information. Osborne provided the committee with Trail updates.  
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Patrick Beilfuss of Cedar Corporation for the purpose of receiving 
information.  Beilfuss presented Trail Planning Considerations for general discussion.  
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Mark Gossman, Forester for the purpose of receiving information.  
Gossman provided the committee with an update on the currant trail maintenance project.   

http://www.co.polk.wi.us/


2 
 

Chair O’Connell called for a motion to recess.  Motion (Olson/Route) to recess passed by 
unanimous voice vote. Chair O’Connell called for a recess at 10:03 a.m. Chair O’Connell called 
the meeting back in session at 10:14 a.m. 
 
Public Hearing 
Chair O’Connell opened the Public Hearing for proposed amendments to the Polk County 
Chapter 18 Subdivision Ordinance at 10:15 a.m.  Jason Kjeseth, Zoning Administrator presented 
a staff report. Chair O’Connell called for public comments.  No public comments offered. No 
correspondence from local municipalities.  Kjeseth completed the findings of fact and 
conclusions of Law. Chair O’Connell closed the Public Hearing at 10:20 a.m.  Discussion. Motion 
(Edgell/Olson) to enact the proposed amendments to the Chapter 18 Subdivision Ordinance 
and recommend passage to the full County Board passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Chair O’Connell recognized Amanda Nissen, Treasurer for the purpose of receiving information. 
Nissen provided a list of properties that just went into Tax Deed and are in the 45 day 
redemption period.  Committee will set prices for these properties in June. 
 
Chair O’Connell called for a motion to convene in closed session at 10:30 a. m. Motion 
(Olson/LaBlanc) to convene in closed session, pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Sec 19.85 (1)(g), to 
receive a verbal legal opinion from Corporation Counsel carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Chair O’Connell requested the minutes reflect the attendance of Corporation Counsel Malia 
Malone, Deputy Stephanie Fansler, Assistant Corporation Counsel Joseph Loso, and 
Administrator Nick Osborne in closed session. 
 
Closed Session 10:30 a.m.  (Minutes separate and under seal) 
 
 
Chair O’Connell called for a motion to recess.  Motion (Olson/Edgell) to recess passed by 
unanimous voice vote. Chair O’Connell called for a recess at 10:30 a.m. Chair O’Connell called 
the meeting back in session at 10:45 a.m. and announced that the only action taken in closed 
session was to come back to open session.  
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Ken Spelz, Brad Arkell and Megan Langer for the purpose of 
receiving information.  Arkell presented a Citizen Proposed Polk County Shoreland Protection 
Zoning Ordinance.  
Chair O’Connell recognized Randy Langkos and Charles Torrance for the purpose of receiving 
information.  Langkos and Torrance made suggestions to the Proposed Polk County Shoreland 
Protection Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Corporation Counsel Malone left the meeting at 12:15 p.m. 
 
 



3 
 

Chair O’Connell recognized Steve Geiger, Division Head for the purpose of receiving 
information.  Geiger presented information regarding a garage encroachment.  Motion 
(Olson/Edgell) to sell the affected property to Jeffrey Martinson passed by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 
Chair O’Connell recognized Tim Ritten, Director of Land and Water to present the Spring, 2019 
Director’s report. 
 
Next Meeting: May22, 2019 at 9:00 A.M. Future agenda items: 2 public hearings, Big Butternut 
Dam discussion and action, Tourist rooming house ordinance discussion and action, Update on 
the AT&T lease, update Kennedy Dam.   
 
Motion (Olson/Edgell) to adjourn. Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. Chair O’Connell 
declared meeting adjourned at 1:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Stephanie Fansler                            
Deputy Polk County Clerk 































 

1 
 

Resolution No. 24-19 1 
 

RESOLUTION to Accept Donation of Land from Robert Johnson. 2 
 3 
TO THE HONORABLE SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF 4 
POLK: 5 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 6 
 
WHEREAS, Robert Johnson has made the request to donate to Polk County 120 7 
acres of land located in the Town of Sterling, T.36N R.19W section 15 SENW, 8 
NESW, SWSW. 9 

 10 
WHEREAS, the donation is conditioned upon the said land be enrolled in the Polk 11 
County Forest program according to Wisconsin State Statue 28.11. 12 
 13 
WHEREAS, the donation is adjacent to existing County Forest Land. 14 
 15 
WHEREAS, the donation is also conditioned upon the said land being appraised for a 16 
donation value.  The appraisal cost are the responsibility of the Polk County Forestry 17 
Department. 18 
 19 
WHEREAS, the Polk County Environmental Services Committee has recommended that 20 
the County accept the donation of the above referenced 120 acres and that that the County 21 
manage said lands for forestry purposes and all other purposes consistent with the Polk 22 
County Forest. 23 

 24 
WHEREAS, it is in the interest of the County to accept the donation of Robert Johnson 25 
and manage said lands for forestry purposes. 26 
 27 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to Wisconsin Statute Section 28 
59.52(6)(a), the Polk County Board of Supervisors does on behalf of Polk County, accept 29 
the donation of 120 acres of land in the Town of Sterling from Robert Johnson. 30 
 31 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Polk County Board of Supervisors directs and 32 
authorizes that the appropriate county officials and officers to prepare and execute any and all 33 
documents associated with the donation and conveyance of said lands from Robert Johnson 34 
to Polk County. 35 
 36 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Polk County Board of Supervisors directs that the 37 
Polk County Forestry Department to update the fifteen year Polk County Forest 38 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan to include the above said property. 39 
 40 
 41 
 



 

2 
 

 
 
 
BY: ____________________________  ____________________________ 

Brad Olson, Supervisor, District #1  James Edgell, Supervisor, District #8 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Doug Route, Supervisor, District #2  Kim O’Connell, Supervisor, District #9 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Dean Johansen, Chair,                   Larry Jepsen, Supervisor, District #10 
Supervisor, District #3,     
____________________________   ____________________________  
Chris Nelson, Supervisor, District #4  Jay Luke, 1st Vice Chair, 
      Supervisor, District #11 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Tracy LaBlanc, Supervisor, District #5  Michael Larsen, Supervisor, District #12 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Brian Masters, Supervisor, District #6  Russell Arcand, Supervisor, District #13 
____________________________   ____________________________ 

       Michael Prichard, Supervisor, District #7  John Bonneprise, 2nd Vice Chair,  
Supervisor, District #14    

   
_______________________________  

      Joe Demulling, Supervisor, District #15 
County Administrator’s Note: 
    
 
_____________________________   
Nick Osborne 
County Administrator 
 
Fiscal Impact Note:  
 
 
_____________________________ 
Maggie Wickre, Finance Director 
 
 
Approved as to Form and Execution: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Malia T. Malone, Corporation Counsel 
 
Legal Impact Note:    
 

 
Excerpt of Minutes 

 
At its regular business meeting on the ____of _________ 2019, the Polk County Board of 42 
Supervisors acted upon Resolution No. ____-19: Resolution 43 



 

3 
 

____________________________________________________________________44 
____________________________________________________________________ 45 

 
 
� Adopted by a majority of the members present by a vote of ________ in 

favor and ________ against. 
� Adopted by unanimous voice vote.  
� Adopted as amended.  See Below. 
� Defeated  
� Other: ________________________________________________________  

 
 
 
 
SIGNED BY:     ATTEST: 
__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Dean Johansen, County Board Chairperson         Sharon Jorgenson, County Clerk 
 
 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
Robert Johnson approached Forest Administrator Mark Gossman with a 120 acre donation in 
East Sterling township section 15, SWSW, NESW, and SENW. 
 
-The land has access by way of other County Forest lands and also easement. 
-The land is currently enrolled in the MFL program.  2018 taxes collected for the 120 acres 
were $1,224.00.  The assed value in 2018 was $224,000. 
-The donation can be removed from the MFL program and enrolled into the Polk County 
Forest acreage. 
-This adjacent property is consistent with the Polk County 15 year Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan in terms of adding property. 
-Approximate appraisal cost is $1,500.  The Forestry Department has funds in the 2019 
budget. 

Insert amendment to resolution according to minutes:  



ANNUAL REPORT 
Calendar Year 2018 

 
 

 
GOVERNING COMMITTEE 

Environmental Services Committee 
Kim O’Connell – Chairperson 

Brad Olson – Vice Chair 
Tracy LaBlanc  
Doug Route 
Jim Edgell 

Lyle Doolittle - FSA Representative 
 

2018 FOREST ADMINISTRATOR 
Mark Gossman 

 
WI-DNR LIAISON 

Paul Heimstead 
 
 



Polk County Forest 2018 Annual Report 
 

 

2 

             
I DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATION AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Forest Administrators responsibilities are to act as the agent of the Environmental Services Committee in 
the implementation of the County Forest 15 year Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The forest administrator 
also coordinates the state/county partnership with the Department liaison forester in the implementation of the 
county forest law (s.28.11, Wis. Stats.).   
 
The primary duties include:  Timber sale planning, setup and administration, forest inventory, and cultural and 
regeneration projects. This is all done in cooperation with the DNR Bureau of Forestry. The administrator is 
also responsible for developing an annual work plan and budget, keeping financial records, administer the state 
grants and loans, etc. 
 
The County Forest is currently 17,144 acres in size, and based on County Forest inventory data the long-term 
annual harvest goal is 425 acres per year. 
 
The County Forest is managed for multiple uses, including timber production, wildlife habitat maintenance and 
recreation.     
 
II 2018 COUNTY FOREST ACTIVITY  
 

• County Forest timber sale revenues for 2018 were $252,058 
• Ten timber sales representing 652 acres were completed in 2018. 
• Five timber sales representing 375 acres, with an estimated 11,252 tons, and 172,600 board feet were 

set-up and sold during the year.  The total estimated value of the sold sales is $161,313.75.  
• There were 36 household firewood permits issued for a total of $585.00.   
• Approximately 1,941 acres of Forest inventory were completed. 
• In the Town of Sterling, 101 acres were prepared for the 2019 planting season.  An additional 50 acres 

were prepared for natural jack pine regeneration. 
• A one acre parcel was withdrawn from the County Forest and an already owned Polk County parcel (20 

acres) was entered into the County Forest program yielding in 19 additional acres. 
• Total Sale value on the books as of 3/11/2019 is $194,828. 

 

 

50%

30%

20%

Timber Sales Revenue

County Forest Revenue    $126,029

Payout to Townships    $75,618

Payout to Interest Free State Loan    $50,412



Polk County Forest 2018 Annual Report 
 

 

3 

III   2018 FINANCIAL REPORT  
(Un-audited) 

 
Revenues  

 

   
101-28-41110-000-000-00 GENERAL PROPERTY TAX ($61,428.00) 
101-28-43582-000-000-00 ST.AID FOREST ADMINISTRATOR $25,617.77  
101-28-43584-000-000-00 ST.AID CO.FOREST ROADS (56114) $2,374.79  
101-28-43592-000-000-00 ST.AID WILDLIFE HABITAT(56115) $836.61  
101-28-46810-000-000-00 NON-SEVERENCE CO.FOREST LAND $585.00  
101-28-46811-000-000-00 COUNTY FOREST REVENUE* $126,029.25  
241-28-43581-000-000-00 ST.AID FORESTRY $0.00  

       Total Revenues  $94,015.42 
 

    
* The County Forest Revenue is 50% of the total timber sales revenue for 2018. Refer to the diagram on Timber 
Sales Revenue.  
 

Expenses   
   
     101-28-56110-009-000-00 PARA-PROFESSIONAL $41,237.05  
     101-28-56110-151-000-00 SOCIAL SECURITY $2,953.18  
     101-28-56110-152-000-00 RETIREMENT $2,450.41  
     101-28-56110-154-000-00 HEALTH INSURANCE $13,262.00  
     101-28-56110-155-000-00 LIFE INSURANCE $94.39  
     101-28-56110-160-000-00 DISABILITY $28.92  
     101-28-56110-161-000-00 FLEX COMP FEES $0.00  
     101-28-56110-162-000-00 SHORT TERM DISABILITY $153.68  
     101-28-56110-225-000-00 TELEPHONE $363.44  
     101-28-56110-240-000-00 IT GLOBAL HARDWARE $413.00  
     101-28-56110-243-000-00 COMPUTER REPAIR/REPLACEMENT $621.00  
     101-28-56110-311-000-00 POSTAGE & BOX RENT $52.57  
     101-28-56110-312-000-00 OFFICE PAPER & FORMS $144.47  
     101-28-56110-313-000-00 COPIES $0.00  
     101-28-56110-314-000-00 SMALL ITEMS OF EQUIPMENT $1,171.89  
     101-28-56110-316-000-00 BULLETINS/PUBLICATIONS $72.50  
     101-28-56110-324-000-00 MEMBERSHIP DUES $2,458.31  
     101-28-56110-325-000-00 REGISTRATION & TRAINING FEES $100.00  
     101-28-56110-326-000-00 ADVERTISING $1,441.21  
     101-28-56110-332-000-00 MILEAGE EMP AUTO ALLOWANCE $3,041.50  
     101-28-56110-335-000-00 MEALS $0.00  
     101-28-56110-336-000-00 LODGING $0.00  
     101-28-56110-346-000-00 CLOTHING & UNIFORMS $0.00  
     101-28-56110-349-000-00 OTHER SUPPLIES -PAINT/FLAGGING $971.21  



Polk County Forest 2018 Annual Report 
 

 

4 

     101-28-56110-396-000-00 TREES (REFORESTATION) $18,033.96  
          Totals for Account Code 56110:  $89,064.69  

   
     101-28-56114-245-000-00 GROUNDS & IMPROVEMENTS $161.82  
     101-28-56114-999-000-00 MAINT.FOR.ROADS CARRY OVER BAL $1,777.67  
          Totals for Account Code 56114:  $1,939.49  

   
     101-28-56115-245-000-00 GROUNDS & IMPROVEMENTS $178.99  
     101-28-56115-999-000-00 WILDLIFE HABITAT-CARRY O/BAL. $1,986.00  
          Totals for Account Code 56115:  $2,164.99  

   
     241-28-56111-245-000-00 GROUNDS AND IMPROVEMENT $569.98  
     241-28-56111-396-000-00 TREES $0.00  
     241-28-56111-513-000-00 PUBLIC LIABILITY $61.98  
          Totals for Account Code 56111:  $631.96  

   
Total Expenses  $93,801.13  

 
 

 
 
 
ADDITIONAL EXPENSES  
 
(851-00-24460-000-000-00) Trust Account 
 

• State Statute requires a minimum of 10% of timber sale revenue to be paid to townships that contain County 
forest lands. 

• Polk County choses to pay 30% of timber sale revenues to the Towns that have County Forest lands. 
 

2018 SEVERANCE TO TOWNS *Based on timber cut in 2017   
Payment January 2018 

Town % of Share Payment 
Apple River 0.18% $203.66  
Bone Lake 0.17% $196.98  
Clam Falls 0.56% $633.55  
Johnstown 1.88% $2,119.69  

Lorain 15.89% $17,926.55  
McKinley 11.85% $13,377.83  
Sterling 44.38% $50,082.60  

Township Severance Total $84,540.86  
 
 
 
 
 



Polk County Forest 2018 Annual Report 
 

 

5 

 
 

Trust Account Ending Balance *Based on timber cut in 2018 
Payment January 2019 $75,182.27 

 
 
 
 
(851-00-24260-000-000-00) Trust Account 

• 20% of timber sale revenues go into a trust account to be paid to the State.  This is money that will be used 
to pay off the interest free project and variable acreage share loans. 

 
INTEREST FREE STATE LOAN 

2018 Beginning Balance (from timber cut in 2017) $43,722.61 
2018 Amount Paid to DNR (includes two payments of $13,305.54 & $43,054.86) $56,360.40  
Cash Receipts $51.281.05 
2018 Ending Balance $37,665.14 

 
 
IV   LOAN UPDATE 

• The long-term Interest Free State Loan for Forestry has been paid 
off according to the DNR as of 01/19/2019.  

o Therefore, with the Interest Free State Loan (851-00-24460-000-000-00) being paid 
off, an additional 20% revenue will go into the General Fund.  

 
• 241-28-43581-000-000-00 State Aid Forestry 

o The short-term Variable Acreage Share Loan of $8,222.86 received in 2019, and 
will pay off at the end of 2019.  

 
V   2019 GOALS 
-  Plant 101 acres 
-  Set-up and sell Polk County Forest’s annual allowable harvest acres. 
-  Expand recreational opportunities within the Polk County Forest  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Mark Gossman 
Forest Administrator 
 







ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 

2019 WORK PLAN 

Date Scheduled Agenda Items Program Evaluation/Upcoming Issues 
January 
 
 
 

• Finalize 2019 Work Plan 
• Timber Sales 
• Wildlife damage crop prices 

• Rules of Order 
review/suggested changes –
Jan thru May 

February 
 
 
 

• Tree Replacement schedule 
• Wildlife damage/Crop Claims 

• Governor’s Budget & impact 

March 
 
 

  

April 
 
 

• Recycling Analysis/review 
• Tax Deed Listings 

 

May 
 
 
 

• Review of repairs on dams 
owned by Polk County  

• Business Analysis of Lime 
Quarry 

• Budget Development – end of 
May 

June 
 
 

• Annual Report Receipt 
• Tax Deed Update (1st mtg) 
• Set Prices for tax deed sales (2nd 

mtg) 

• Lime Quarry Analysis 
• Recycling Dept. Analysis 
 

July 
 
 

• Annual Reports – Tourism 
review 

 

August 
 
 

• Review/Revise Comprehensive 
Forest Plan 

• Land and Water Public Hearing 

 

September 
 
 

  

October 
 
 

• Budgets/Budget amendments 
• Annual Forestry Plan 

 

November 
 

  
 
 

December • Develop 2020 Work Plan   


	For 5.22.19 ES- ES Minutes from 5-8-19
	For 5.22.19 ES-RES 24-19 Robert Johnson Donation
	For 5.22.19 ES-2018 PCF Annual Report
	ANNUAL REPORT
	GOVERNING COMMITTEE

	2018 FOREST ADMINISTRATOR
	WI-DNR LIAISON
	Paul Heimstead
	I DEPARTMENT ORGANIZATION AND RESPONSIBILITIES
	II 2018 COUNTY FOREST ACTIVITY
	 Total Sale value on the books as of 3/11/2019 is $194,828.
	III   2018 FINANCIAL REPORT
	(Un-audited)
	ADDITIONAL EXPENSES
	(851-00-24460-000-000-00) Trust Account
	(851-00-24260-000-000-00) Trust Account



	IV   LOAN UPDATE
	V   2019 GOALS

	For 5.22.19 ES-Work plan ES 2019 - as of 5.1.19

